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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Amendment No. 1 amends and restates in its entirety the Definitive Proxy Statement and related Proxy Card of
Alimera Sciences, Inc. (the “Company”) that was originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
April 26, 2017. The original Definitive Proxy Statement and Proxy Card inadvertently omitted an advisory proposal
relating to the frequency of holding future stockholder advisory non-binding votes on the compensation of the
Company’s executive officers. The purpose of this Amendment No. 1 is to include that advisory proposal. No other
changes have been made to the original Definitive Proxy Statement and Proxy Card.
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Alimera Sciences, Inc.

6120 Windward Parkway

Suite 290

Alpharetta, Georgia 30005

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON JUNE 22, 2017

To the Stockholders of Alimera Sciences, Inc.:

The annual meeting of stockholders for Alimera Sciences, Inc. (the “Company”) will be held exclusively online via the
Internet on Thursday, June 22, 2017 at 9:30 a.m. Eastern Time. The purposes of the meeting are:

1. To elect three Class I directors (Proposal 1);

2. To ratify the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal
year ending December 31, 2017 (Proposal 2);

3. To approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of our named executive officers (Proposal 3);

4. To hold an advisory non-binding vote on the frequency of holding a vote on executive compensation

(Proposal 4); and

5. To transact such other business as may properly come before the annual meeting or any adjournments or
postponements thereof.

Our Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on April 25, 2017 as the record date for determining holders of
our common stock and preferred stock entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the annual meeting or any adjournments or
postponements thereof. A complete list of such stockholders will be available for examination at our offices in
Alpharetta, Georgia during normal business hours for a period of ten days prior to the annual meeting.

This year we are again using the Internet as our primary means of furnishing proxy materials to stockholders.
Accordingly, most stockholders will not receive copies of our proxy materials. We instead are mailing a notice with
instructions for accessing the proxy materials and voting via the Internet (the “Notice of Internet Availability”). We
encourage you to review these materials and vote your shares. This delivery method allows us to conserve natural
resources and reduce the cost of delivery while also meeting our obligations to you, our stockholders, to provide
information relevant to your continued investment in the Company. If you received the Notice of Internet Availability
by mail and would like to receive a printed copy of our proxy materials, you should follow the instructions for
requesting such materials included in the Notice of Internet Availability.

We first filed a notice of annual meeting, proxy statement and proxy card with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 26, 2017, which inadvertently omitted Proposal 4. We are first mailing this revised Notice of
Internet Availability, amended and restated proxy statement and the enclosed revised proxy card to our stockholders
on or about May 10, 2017.

The annual meeting will be presented exclusively online at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ALIM2017. You
will be able to attend the annual meeting online, vote your shares electronically and submit your questions during the
annual meeting by visiting www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ALIM2017.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the virtual Annual Meeting, please vote by telephone or
over the Internet, or by completing, signing, dating and returning your proxy card or voting instruction form so that
your shares will be represented at the Annual Meeting. Instructions for voting are described in the Company’s Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting, Notice of Internet Availability or proxy card.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL
MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON JUNE 22, 2017: The Company’s Notice of Annual Meeting,
Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 are available at
WWW.proxyvote.com.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Jeffrey W. Burris

Secretary of the Company

Alpharetta, Georgia

Date: May 10, 2017
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ALIMERA SCIENCES, INC.
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For the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
To Be Held on June 22, 2017
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ALIMERA SCIENCES, INC.

6120 Windward Parkway

Suite 290

Alpharetta, Georgia 30005

(678) 990-5740

PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE

2017 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

This proxy statement (the ‘“Proxy Statement”) and associated proxy card are furnished in connection with the solicitation
of proxies to be voted at the 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”’) of Alimera Sciences, Inc.
(sometimes referred to as “we”, the “Company” or “Alimera”), which will be held on Thursday, June 22, 2017 at 9:30 a.m.
Eastern Time virtually via the Internet at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ALIM2017. You may attend the
Annual Meeting virtually online, vote your shares electronically and submit your questions during the Annual

Meeting by visiting www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ALIM2017.

This Proxy Statement and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 (the “Annual
Report™) are available to stockholders at www.proxyvote.com. We first filed a notice of annual meeting, proxy
statement and proxy card with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 26, 2017, which inadvertently
omitted Proposal 4. On May 10, 2017, we will begin mailing to our stockholders (i) a revised notice (the “Notice”)
containing instructions on how to access and review this Proxy Statement and the Annual Report or (ii) a copy of this
Proxy Statement, a proxy card and the Annual Report. The Notice also instructs you how you may submit your proxy
over the Internet. If you received a Notice and would like to receive a printed copy of our proxy materials, you should
follow the instructions for requesting those materials included in the Notice.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THIS PROXY MATERIAL AND VOTING

Why am I receiving these proxy materials?

You received these proxy materials because you owned shares of Alimera common stock or Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock (“Series A Preferred Stock™) as of April 25, 2017, the record date for the Annual Meeting (the “Record
Date”), and the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) is soliciting your proxy to vote at the Annual Meeting. This
Proxy Statement describes matters on which we would like you to vote at the Annual Meeting. It also gives you
information on these matters so that you can make an informed decision.

Why did I receive a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials in the mail instead of a printed set of proxy
materials?

Pursuant to rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), we are permitted to furnish our
proxy materials over the Internet to our stockholders by delivering a Notice in the mail. As a result, only stockholders
who specifically request a printed copy of the Proxy Statement will receive one. Instead, the Notice instructs
stockholders on how to access and review the Proxy Statement and Annual Report over the Internet at
www.proxyvote.com. The Notice also instructs stockholders on how they may submit their proxy over the Internet or
via phone. If a stockholder who received a Notice would like to receive a printed copy of our proxy materials, such
stockholder should follow the instructions for requesting these materials contained in the Notice.

What do I need in order to be able to attend the Annual Meeting online?

The Company will be hosting the Annual Meeting exclusively live online. Any stockholder can attend the Annual
Meeting live online at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ALIM2017. You will need the 16-digit control number
included in your Notice of Internet Availability or your proxy card (if you received a printed copy of the proxy
materials) in order to be able to enter the Annual Meeting. Instructions on how to attend and participate online,
including how to demonstrate proof of stock ownership, are posted at
www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ALIM2017.
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How may I vote at the Annual Meeting?

You are invited to attend the Annual Meeting virtually to vote on the proposals described in this Proxy Statement.
However, you do not need to attend the Annual Meeting to vote your shares. Instead, follow the instructions below to
submit your proxy via telephone or on the Internet. If you received or requested a printed set of materials, you may
also vote by mail by signing, dating and returning the proxy card.

When you vote, regardless of the method used, you appoint Richard S. Eiswirth, Jr., our President and Chief Financial
Officer, and Jeffrey W. Burris, our Vice President, General Counsel, as your representatives (or proxyholders) at the
Annual Meeting. They will vote your shares at the Annual Meeting as you have instructed them or, if an issue that is
not on the proxy card comes up for vote, in accordance with their best judgment. This way, your shares will be voted
whether or not you attend the Annual Meeting.

Who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting?

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on the Record Date will be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.
On the Record Date, there were 64,862,904 shares of the Company’s common stock and 600,000 shares of the
Company’s Series A Preferred Stock outstanding. All of these outstanding shares are entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting (one vote per share of common stock and one vote per share of common stock underlying the Series A
Preferred Stock on an as-converted basis (based on a deemed conversion price of $2.95 per share resulting in
8,135,593 votes for the Series A Preferred Stock) as of the Record Date) in connection with the matters set forth in
this Proxy Statement. Additionally, on the Record Date, 8,416.251 shares of our non-voting Series B Preferred Stock
were outstanding but are not entitled to vote on any matters presented at the Annual Meeting.

In accordance with Delaware law, a list of stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be accessible for
ten days prior to the meeting at our principal place of business, 6120 Windward Parkway, Suite 290, Alpharetta,
Georgia 30005, between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. local time. In addition, during the Annual Meeting such
list of stockholders will be available for examination at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/ALIM2017.

How do I vote?

If on the Record Date, your shares were registered directly in your name with our transfer agent, American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company, then you are a stockholder of record. Stockholders of record may vote by using the
Internet, by telephone or, if you received a proxy card by mail, by mail as described below. Stockholders also may
attend the Annual Meeting virtually and vote during the Annual Meeting. If you hold shares through a bank or broker
(i.e., in “street name”), please refer to your proxy card, Notice or other information forwarded by your bank or broker to
see which voting options are available to you.

You may vote by using the Internet. The address of the website for Internet voting is www.proxyvote.com. Internet
voting is available 24 hours a day and will be accessible until 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on June 21, 2017.
Easy-to-follow instructions allow you to vote your shares and confirm that your instructions have been properly
recorded.

You may vote by telephone. The toll-free telephone number is noted on your proxy card. Telephone voting is
available 24 hours a day and will be accessible until 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on June 21, 2017. Easy-to-follow voice
prompts allow you to vote your shares and confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded.

You may vote by mail. If you received a proxy card by mail and choose to vote by mail, simply mark your proxy card,
date and sign it, and return it in the postage-paid envelope. Your proxy card must be received by the close of business
on June 21, 2017.

The method you use to vote will not limit your right to vote at the Annual Meeting if you decide to attend virtually. If
you hold your shares in “street name,” you must obtain a proxy, executed in your favor, from the holder of record to be
able to vote virtually at the Annual Meeting.

Can I change my vote after submitting my proxy?

Yes. You can revoke your proxy at any time before the final vote at the Annual Meeting. If you are the record holder
of your shares, you may revoke your proxy in any one of three ways:

You may submit a subsequent proxy by using the Internet, by telephone or by mail with a later date;

2
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You may deliver a written notice that you are revoking your proxy to the Secretary of the Company at 6120

Windward Parkway, Suite 290, Alpharetta, Georgia 30005; or
You may attend the Annual Meeting virtually and vote your shares at the Annual Meeting. Simply attending the
Annual Meeting without affirmatively voting will not, by itself, revoke your proxy.
If you are a beneficial owner of your shares, you must contact the broker or other nominee holding your shares and
follow their instructions for changing your vote.
How many votes do you need to hold the Annual Meeting?
A quorum of stockholders is necessary to conduct business at the Annual Meeting. Pursuant to our amended and
restated bylaws, a quorum will be present if a majority of the voting power of outstanding shares of the Company
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors is represented in person via webcast or by proxy at the Annual
Meeting. On the Record Date, there were 64,862,904 shares of common stock outstanding and entitled to vote and
8,135,593 shares of common stock underlying the outstanding Series A Preferred Stock (based on a deemed
conversion price of $2.95 per share) entitled to vote. Thus, 36,499,249 shares must be represented by stockholders
present at the Annual Meeting or represented by proxy to have a quorum. The holders of the common stock and the
Series A Preferred Stock (on an as converted basis based on a deemed conversion price of $2.95 per share) vote
together as a single class for the proposals in this Proxy Statement. Our Series B Preferred Stock is non-voting and is
not included for the purposes of the calculations above.
Your shares will be counted towards the quorum only if you submit a valid proxy (or one is submitted on your behalf
by your broker, bank or other nominee) or if you attend the Annual Meeting virtually and vote at that time.
Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present for the
transaction of business. If a quorum is not present, the chairman of the Annual Meeting or holders of a majority of the
votes present at the Annual Meeting may adjourn the Annual Meeting to another date.
What matters will be voted on at the Annual Meeting?
The following matters are scheduled to be voted on at the Annual Meeting:

Proposal 1: To elect three Class I directors nominated by our Board and named in this Proxy Statement to
serve a term of three years until our 2020 annual meeting of stockholders;

Proposal 2: To ratify the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as our independent registered public accountants for
the year ending December 31, 2017;
Proposal 3: To approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of our named executive officers; and
Proposal 4: To hold an advisory non-binding vote on the frequency of holding a vote on executive compensation.
No cumulative voting rights are authorized, and dissenters’ rights are not applicable to these matters.
What will happen if I do not vote my shares?
Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name. If you are the stockholder of record of your shares and you
do not vote by proxy card, by telephone, via the Internet or virtually at the Annual Meeting, your shares will not be
voted at the Annual Meeting.
Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of Broker or Bank. Brokers or other nominees who hold shares of
our common stock or preferred stock for a beneficial owner in street name have the discretion to vote on routine
proposals when they have not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner at least ten days prior to the
Annual Meeting. A broker non-vote occurs when a broker or other nominee does not receive voting instructions from
the beneficial owner and does not have the discretion to direct the voting of the shares. Under the rules that govern
brokers who are voting shares held in street name, brokers have the discretion to vote those shares on routine matters
but not on non-routine matters. Proposal 2 is the only routine matter in this Proxy Statement. As such, your broker
does not have discretion to vote your shares on Proposals 1, 3 or 4.
We encourage you to provide instructions to your bank or brokerage firm by voting your proxy. This action ensures
your shares will be voted at the Annual Meeting in accordance with your wishes.

3
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Could other matters be decided at the Annual Meeting?

We do not know of any other matters that may be presented for action at the Annual Meeting. Should any other matter
be properly presented at the Annual Meeting, the persons named on the proxy card will have discretionary authority to
vote the shares represented by proxies in accordance with their best judgment. If you hold shares in street name as
described above, they will not be able to vote your shares on any other business that comes before the Annual Meeting
unless they receive instructions from you with respect to such other business.

How may I vote for each proposal and what is the vote required for each proposal?

Proposal 1: Election of three Class I directors.

With respect to the election of nominees for director, you may:

«vote “FOR” the election of the three nominees for director;

#¥WITHHOLD” your vote for one of the nominees and vote “FOR” the remaining nominees;

*“WITHHOLD” your vote for two of the nominees and vote “FOR” the remaining nominee; or

#WITHHOLD” your vote for all three nominees.

Directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting, meaning the three nominees who are
properly nominated in accordance with our amended and restated bylaws, and receive the most “FOR” votes will be
elected. Only votes cast “FOR” a nominee will be counted. An instruction to “WITHHOLD” authority to vote for one or
more of the nominees will result in those nominees receiving fewer votes, but will not count as a vote against the
nominees. Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the election of directors.

Proposal 2: Ratification of the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as our independent registered public accountants
for the year ending December 31, 2017.

You may vote “FOR” or “AGAINST” or abstain from voting. To ratify the selection by the audit committee of the Board
of Grant Thornton LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company for the year ending
December 31, 2017, the Company must receive a “FOR” vote from a majority of all those outstanding shares that are
present, or represented by proxy, and that are cast either affirmatively or negatively on the proposal at the Annual
Meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will not be counted “FOR” or “AGAINST” the proposal and will have no
effect on the proposal.

Proposal 3: Advisory vote on executive compensation.

You may vote “FOR” or “AGAINST” or abstain from voting. To approve, by non-binding vote, the compensation of the
Company’s named executive officers as set forth in this Proxy Statement, the Company must receive a “FOR” vote from
a majority of all those outstanding shares that are present in person via webcast, or represented by proxy, and that are
cast either affirmatively or negatively on the proposal at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will
not be counted “FOR” or “AGAINST” the proposal and will have no effect on the proposal.

Proposal 4: Advisory non-binding vote on the frequency of holding a vote on executive compensation.

You may cast your vote on your preferred voting frequency by choosing the option of “1 year”, “2 years”, 3 years” or
abstain from voting. The choice among the three choices which receives the highest number of votes will be deemed
the choice of the stockholders. The result of Proposal 4 shall be non-binding on the Company. Abstentions and “broker
non-votes” will not be counted as a vote for any of the three choices and will have no effect on the proposal. Because
Proposal 4 is a non-routine matter, broker non-votes are expected to exist in connection with this matter.

What happens if a director nominee is unable to stand for election?

If a nominee is unable to stand for election, the Board may either:

reduce the number of directors that serve on the Board; or

designate a substitute nominee.

4
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If the Board designates a substitute nominee, shares represented by proxies voted for the nominee who is unable to
stand for election will be voted for the substitute nominee.

How does the Board recommend that I vote?

The Board recommends a vote:

.Proposal 1:  “FOR?” the election of each of James R. Largent, C. Daniel Myers and Calvin W. Roberts, M.D. as Class |
directors to serve a term of three years until our 2020 annual meeting of stockholders;

Proposal 2:  “FOR?” the ratification of the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as our independent registered public
accounting firm of the Company for the year ending December 31, 2017;

Proposal 3:  “FOR?” the approval, in an advisory manner, of the compensation of our named executive officers as set
forth in this Proxy Statement; and

Proposal 4:  for “1 YEAR?”, in an advisory non-binding manner, as your preferred frequency of holding a vote on
executive compensation.

What happens if I sign and return my proxy card but do not provide voting instructions?

If you return a signed and dated proxy card without marking any voting selections, your shares will be voted:
.Proposal 1:  “FOR?” the election of each of James R. Largent, C. Daniel Myers and Calvin W. Roberts, M.D. as Class |
directors;

Proposal 2:  “FOR?” the ratification of the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as our independent registered public
accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2017;

Proposal 3:  “FOR?” the approval, in an advisory manner, of the compensation of our named executive officers as set
forth in this Proxy Statement; and

Proposal 4:  for “1 YEAR” as your preferred frequency of holding a vote on executive compensation.

If any other matter is properly presented at the Annual Meeting, the proxyholders for shares voted on the proxy card
(i.e. one of the individuals named as proxies on your proxy card) will vote your shares using his best judgment.

How do I attend the virtual Annual Meeting?

We are hosting the Annual Meeting exclusively online via live webcast this year. The accompanying proxy materials
include instructions on how to participate in the Annual Meeting and how to vote your shares of the Company's capital
stock by attending the virtual Annual Meeting via webcast. You will need to enter the 16-digit control number
received with your proxy card or Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials to enter the Annual Meeting via
online web portal.

Who is paying for this proxy solicitation?

The accompanying proxy is being solicited by the Board. In addition to this solicitation, directors and employees of
the Company may solicit proxies in person, by telephone, or by other means of communication. Directors and
employees will not be paid any additional compensation for soliciting proxies. In addition, the Company may also
retain one or more third parties to aid in the solicitation of brokers, banks and institutional and other stockholders. We
will pay for the entire cost of soliciting proxies. We may reimburse brokerage firms, banks and other agents for the
cost of forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners.

What happens if the Annual Meeting is postponed or adjourned?

Unless the polls have closed or you have revoked your proxy, your proxy will still be in effect and may be voted once
the Annual Meeting is reconvened. However, you will still be able to change or revoke your proxy with respect to any
proposal until the polls have closed for voting on such proposal.
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How can I find out the results of the voting at the Annual Meeting?

Preliminary voting results are expected to be announced at the Annual Meeting. Final voting results will be reported
on a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC no later than four business days following the conclusion of the
Annual Meeting.

How can I find Alimera’s proxy materials and Annual Report on the Internet?

This Proxy Statement and the Annual Report are available at our corporate website at www.alimerasciences.com. You
also can obtain copies without charge at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. Additionally, in accordance with SEC
rules, you may access these materials at www.proxyvote.com, which does not have “cookies” that identify visitors to the
site.

How do I obtain a separate set of Alimera’s proxy materials if I share an address with other stockholders?

In some cases, stockholders holding their shares in a brokerage or bank account who share the same surname and
address and have not given contrary instructions receive only one copy of the Notice. This practice is designed to
reduce duplicate mailings and save printing and postage costs as well as natural resources. If you would like to have a
separate copy of the Notice, the Proxy Statement or the Annual Report mailed to you or to receive separate copies of
future mailings, please submit your request to the address or phone number that appears on your Notice or proxy card.
We will deliver such additional copies promptly upon receipt of such request.

In other cases, stockholders receiving multiple copies of the Notice at the same address may wish to receive only one.
If you would like to receive only one copy if you now receive more than one, please submit your request to the
address or phone number that appears on your Notice or proxy card.

Can I receive future proxy materials and annual reports electronically?

Yes. This Proxy Statement and the Annual Report are available on our investor relations website located at
http://investor.alimerasciences.com. Instead of receiving paper copies in the mail, stockholders can elect to receive an
email that provides a link to our future annual reports and proxy materials on the Internet. Opting to receive your
proxy materials electronically will save us the cost of producing and mailing documents to your home or business,
will reduce the environmental impact of our annual meetings and will give you an automatic link to the proxy voting
site.

Whom should I call if I have any questions?

If you have any questions, would like additional Alimera proxy materials or proxy cards, or need assistance in voting
your shares, please contact Investor Relations, Alimera Sciences, Inc., 6120 Windward Parkway, Suite 290,
Alpharetta, Georgia 30005 or by telephone at (877) 889-1972.

Can I submit a proposal for inclusion in the proxy statement for the 2018 annual meeting?

Stockholders of the Company may submit proper proposals (other than the nomination of directors) for inclusion in
our proxy statement and for consideration at our 2018 annual meeting of stockholders by submitting their proposals in
writing to the Secretary of the Company in a timely manner. In order to be considered for inclusion in our proxy
materials for the 2018 annual meeting of stockholders, stockholder proposals must:

be received by the Secretary of the Company no later than the close of business on December 26, 2017 (which is the
420th day prior to the first anniversary of the date that we released this Proxy Statement to our stockholders for this
Annual Meeting); and

otherwise comply with the requirements of Delaware law, Rule 14a-8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), and our amended and restated bylaws.

Unless we receive notice in the foregoing manner, the proxyholders shall have discretionary authority to vote for or
against any such proposal presented at our 2018 annual meeting of stockholders. If we change the date of the 2018
annual meeting of stockholders by more than 30 days from the anniversary of this year’s Annual Meeting, stockholder
proposals must be received a reasonable time before we begin to print and mail our proxy materials for the 2018
annual meeting of stockholders.
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Can I submit a nomination for director candidates and proposals not intended for inclusion in the proxy statement for
the 2018 annual meeting?

Stockholders of the Company who wish to nominate persons for election to the Board at the 2018 annual meeting of
stockholders or who wish to present a proposal at the 2018 annual meeting of stockholders, but who do not intend for
such proposal to be included in our proxy materials for such meeting, must deliver written notice of the nomination or
proposal to Alimera Sciences, Inc., 6120 Windward Parkway, Suite 290, Alpharetta, Georgia 30005, Attention:
Secretary no earlier than February 10, 2018 and no later than March 12, 2018. However, if the 2018 annual meeting of
stockholders is held earlier than May 23, 2018 or later than July 22, 2018, nominations and proposals must be
received no later than the close of business on the later of (a) the 90th day prior to the 2018 annual meeting of
stockholders and (b) the 10th day following the day we first publicly announce the date of the 2018 annual meeting. In
addition, if the number of directors to be elected to the Board is increased and we do not publicly announce all of the
nominees for election or specify the size of the increase by March 3, 2018, then proposals with respect to nominees
for any new positions created by the increase in Board size must be delivered to the address listed above no later than
the 10th day following such public announcement. The stockholder’s written notice must include certain information
concerning the stockholder and each nominee and proposal, as specified in our amended and restated bylaws.

Where can I obtain a copy of the Company’s amended and restated bylaws?

A copy of our amended and restated bylaw provisions governing the notice requirements set forth above may be
obtained by writing to the Secretary of the Company. A current copy of our amended and restated bylaws also is
available at our corporate website at www.alimerasciences.com. Such requests and all notices of proposals and
director nominations by stockholders should be sent to Alimera Sciences, Inc., 6120 Windward Parkway, Suite 290,
Alpharetta, Georgia 30005, Attention: Secretary.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting to be Held on Thursday, June
22,2017: This Proxy Statement and the Annual Report are available on-line at www.proxyvote.com.
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MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING

PROPOSAL 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General

The Board is currently comprised of eight directors divided into three classes with staggered three-year terms. There
are three Class I and Class III directors and two Class II directors. The term of office of our Class I directors, James R.
Largent, C. Daniel Myers and Calvin W. Roberts, M.D. will expire at this year’s Annual Meeting. The term of office of
our Class II directors, Glen Bradley, Ph.D. and Garheng Kong, M.D., Ph.D., will expire at the 2018 annual meeting of
stockholders. The term of office of our Class III directors, Mark J. Brooks, Brian K. Halak, Ph.D. and Peter J. Pizzo,
III will expire at the 2019 annual meeting of stockholders. There are no family relationships among any of our
directors or executive officers. It is our policy to encourage nominees for director to attend the Annual Meeting.
Nominees for Election as Class I Directors at the Annual Meeting

This year’s nominees for election to the Board as our Class I directors to serve for a term of three years expiring at the
2020 annual meeting of stockholders, or until their successors have been duly elected and qualified or until their
earlier death, resignation or removal, are provided below. The age of each director as of the Record Date is set forth
below. Each of the nominees has agreed to serve as a director if elected, and we have no reason to believe that either
nominee will be unable to serve if elected.

Name Age Positions and Offices Held with Company Director Since
James R. Largent 67 Director 2011
C. Daniel Myers 63 Director, Chief Executive Officer 2003
Calvin W. Roberts, M.D. 64 Director 2003

The following is additional information about each of the nominees as of the date of this Proxy Statement, including
their business experience, director positions held currently or at any time during the last five years, involvement in
certain legal or administrative proceedings, if applicable, and the experiences, qualifications, attributes or skills that
caused the nominating corporate governance committee and our board of directors to determine that the nominees
should serve as one of our directors.

James R. Largent has been a member of the Board since 2011 and became chairman on May 6, 2015. Mr. Largent has
worked extensively within the medical industry. He most recently served as a medical and pharmaceutical consultant,
including work with the U.S. ophthalmic device company, Eyeonics Inc. Also in his role as a consultant, he assisted a
multinational pharmaceutical and medical device company in the evaluation of strategic targets. Prior to this,

Mr. Largent served in various senior management positions at Allergan, Inc., including as vice president of strategic
planning where he fostered licensing deals to build product pipelines. Earlier in his career, he was vice president of
strategic marketing at Allergan Medical Optics, Inc. Mr. Largent also held positions of increasing responsibility in the
marketing and sales departments at Allergan and Pharmacia Ophthalmics. In addition to serving on the Board,

Mr. Largent is on the board of directors of SOLX Inc., a privately held company focused on the management and
surgical treatment of glaucoma. He previously served on the board of directors of Tear Science, Inc., a privately held
developer of diagnostic and therapeutic devices for the treatment of patients with dry eye disease. Mr. Largent earned
a B.A. in chemistry and an M.B.A., both from the University of California, Irvine. The Board believes that

Mr. Largent should serve as a director of the Company, in light of its business and structure, because Mr. Largent has
over 30 years of experience in pharmaceutical and medical devices, including the role of vice president of strategic
marketing and as a leading industry consultant.

C. Daniel Myers is one of our co-founders and has served as our Chief Executive Officer and as a director since the
founding of our Company in 2003. Before founding our Company, Mr. Myers was an initial employee of Novartis
Ophthalmics (formerly CIBA Vision Ophthalmics) and served as its Vice President of Sales and Marketing from 1991
to 1997 and as President from 1997 to 2003. Mr. Myers holds a B.S. in Industrial Management from Georgia Institute
of Technology. The Board believes that Mr. Myers should serve as a director of the Company, in light of its business
and structure, because in addition to his valuable contributions to our Company in recent years, Mr. Myers has over 33
years of ophthalmic pharmaceutical experience, including over 19 years in the role of president or chief executive
officer. In addition, Mr. Myers served on the board of directors of Ocular Therapeutix, Inc. from 2009 to 2012. Mr.
Myers currently serves on a number of industry boards.
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Calvin W. Roberts, M.D. has been a member of the Board since 2003. Dr. Roberts currently serves as an Executive
Vice President and Chief Medical Officer of Bausch + Lomb. Since 1982, Dr. Roberts has served as a Clinical
Professor of Ophthalmology at Weill Medical College of Cornell University. From 1989 to 2011, Dr. Roberts also
served as a consultant to Allergan, Inc., Johnson & Johnson and Novartis. Dr. Roberts holds an A.B. from Princeton
University and an M.D. from the College of Physicians and Surgeons of Columbia University. Dr. Roberts completed
his internship and ophthalmology residency at Columbia Presbyterian Hospital in New York and completed cornea
fellowships at Massachusetts Eye and Ear Infirmary and the Schepens Eye Research Institute in Boston. The Board
believes that Dr. Roberts should serve as a director of the Company, in light of its business and structure, because in
addition to his valuable contributions to our Company in recent years, Dr. Roberts has an understanding of the market
for products in ophthalmology and the nature of the relationship between pharmaceutical companies and physicians
derived from his over 25 years in the practice of medicine as well as his experience in the medical market place and in
the processes of drug development and regulatory approval as a consultant to other pharmaceutical companies.
Required Vote and Recommendation of the Board for Proposal 1

The affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting is required for the election of our Class I
directors. The three nominees receiving the most “FOR” votes among votes properly cast in person via webcast or by
proxy will be elected to the Board as Class I directors. You may vote “FOR” or “WITHHOLD” on each of the nominees
for election as director. Shares represented by signed proxy cards will be voted on Proposal 1 “FOR” the election of
Messrs. Largent and Myers and Dr. Roberts to the Board at the Annual Meeting, unless otherwise marked on the
proxy card. A broker non-vote or a properly executed proxy marked “WITHHOLD” with respect to the election of a
Class I director will not be voted with respect to such director, although it will be counted for purposes of determining
whether there is a quorum.

THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU

VOTE “FOR” JAMES R. LARGENT, C. DANIEL MYERS AND CALVIN W. ROBERTS, M.D.

Continuing Directors Not Standing for Election

Certain information about those directors whose terms do not expire at the Annual Meeting is furnished below,
including their business experience, director positions held currently or at any time during the last five years,
involvement in certain legal or administrative proceedings, if applicable, and the experiences, qualifications, attributes
or skills that caused the nominating and corporate governance committee and the Board to determine that the directors
should serve as one of our directors. The age of each director as of the Record Date is set forth below.

Name Age Positions and Offices Held with Company Director Since
Glen Bradley, Ph.D., M.B.A. 74 Director 2011
Mark J. Brooks 50 Director 2004
Brian K. Halak, Ph.D. 45 Director 2004
Garheng Kong, M.D., Ph.D. 41 Director 2012
Peter J. Pizzo, II1 50 Director 2010

Class II Directors (Terms Expire in 2018)

Glen Bradley, Ph.D., M.B.A., has been a member of the Board since 2011. Dr. Bradley served as the Chief Executive
Officer of CIBA Vision Corporation, the eye care unit of Novartis, A.G., or CIBA Vision, from 1990 to January 2003.
Since 2003, Dr. Bradley has served as a consultant to various medical device and ophthalmic drug companies.

Dr. Bradley served in the positions of President and CEO from 1986 to 1989 for CIBA Vision, the United States
operations of the CIBA Vision Group. Prior to CIBA Vision, he served in senior management positions in the
Agricultural, Plastics & Additives and Electronic Equipment Groups of CIBA-Geigy Corporation. Dr. Bradley has
been chairman of the board of directors at REFOCUS Group Inc., since March 2003. He serves as a Director of Intuity
Medical, Inc. He has previously held board positions with Spectra Physics, Summit Technology, Biofisica,
AerovectRx, e-Dr and Biocure. He served as Chairman of the Contact Lens Institute. Dr. Bradley holds a bachelor’s
degree in chemical engineering from Mississippi State University, a Ph.D. in chemical engineering from Louisiana
State University, an M.B.A. in business and finance from the University of Connecticut and is a graduate of the
Advanced Management Program at Harvard Business School. The Board believes that Dr. Bradley should serve as a
director of the Company, in light of its business and structure, because of his significant knowledge, experience, and
financial expertise in the ophthalmic industry.
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Garheng Kong, M.D., Ph.D., has been a member of the Board since 2012. Dr. Kong has been the Managing Partner of
Sofinnova HealthQuest, a healthcare investment firm, since July 2013. He was a General Partner at Sofinnova
Ventures, a venture capital firm focused on life sciences, from September 2010 to December 2013. From 2000 to
2010, he was at Intersouth Partners, a venture capital firm, most recently as a General Partner, where he was a
founding investor or board member for various life sciences ventures, several of which were acquired by large
pharmaceutical companies. Dr. Kong has served on the board of directors of Cempra, Inc. since September 2006 and
as chairman of its board since November 2008. Dr. Kong has served on the board of Histogenics Corporation, a public
regenerative medicine company, since 2012 where he also serves as the chairman of the board. Dr. Kong also serves
on the board of Laboratory Corporation of America Holdings, a NYSE-listed healthcare company, since December
2013 and Strongbridge Biopharma plc, a public rare disease biomedical company, since September 2015. Dr. Kong
holds a B.S. in chemical engineering and biological sciences from Stanford University. He holds an M.D., Ph.D. in
biomedical engineering and an M.B.A. from Duke University. The Board believes that Dr. Kong should serve as a
director of the Company, in light of its business and structure, because of his knowledge and experience in the
biotechnology industry, as well as his medical training.

Class III Directors (Terms Expire in 2019)

Mark J. Brooks has been a member of the Board since 2004. Mr. Brooks is a Venture Partner of Scale Venture
Partners. Mr. Brooks has been with Scale Venture Partners since its formation in January 2007 and previously served
as a Managing Director. Prior to joining Scale Venture Partners, from 1995 Mr. Brooks worked for Bank of America
Ventures, ultimately serving as a Managing Director. Mr. Brooks currently serves on the board of directors of three
privately held companies: Cutis Care, LLC, LivHome, Inc. and Spinal Kinetics, Inc. From 1999 until its acquisition in
2015, Mr. Brooks served on the board of directors of IPC The Hospitalist Company, Inc., a publicly traded provider of
hospitalist services. Mr. Brooks holds an M.B.A. from the Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania and a
B.A. in Economics from Dartmouth College. The Board believes that Mr. Brooks should serve as a director of the
Company, in light of its business and structure, because in addition to his valuable contributions to our Company in
recent years, Mr. Brooks has experience as a Venture Partner of Scale Venture Partners, where Mr. Brooks has led
investments in healthcare services, medical devices and drug development companies and his service on the board of
directors of a number of Scale Venture Partners’ portfolio companies.

Brian K. Halak, Ph.D. has been a member of the Board since 2004. Dr. Halak joined Domain Associates, L.L..C. in
2001 and has served as a Partner of Domain Associates, L.L.C. since 2006. Prior to joining Domain Associates,
L.L.C., Dr. Halak served as an analyst of Advanced Technology Ventures from 2000 to 2001. From 1993 to 1995,

Dr. Halak served as an analyst of Wilkerson Group. Dr. Halak holds a Doctorate in Immunology from Thomas
Jefferson University and a B.S. in Engineering from the University of Pennsylvania. The Board believes that

Dr. Halak should serve as a director of the Company, in light of its business and structure, because in addition to his
valuable contributions to our Company in recent years, Dr. Halak has served on the board of directors of more than
ten emerging companies in the life sciences industry in the past ten years, including Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
which completed a public offering on Nasdaq in 2014, Vanda Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a public company listed on
Nasdaq, and Esprit Pharma, Inc., a company that was acquired by Allergan, Inc.

Peter J. Pizzo, III has been a member of the Board since April 2010. Since 2005, Mr. Pizzo has served as the Vice
President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Carticept Medical, Inc., a private medical device company, and
since its spinout from Carticept in December 2011, as Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Cartiva,
Inc., a private orthopedic medical device company. From 2002 until its sale in 2005, Mr. Pizzo served as the Vice
President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Proxima Therapeutics, Inc., a private medical device company that
developed and marketed local radiation delivery systems for the treatment of solid cancerous tumors. From 1996 to
2001, Mr. Pizzo worked for Serologicals Corporation, a publicly traded global provider of biological products to life
science companies, ultimately serving as Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer. From 1995 to 1996,
Mr. Pizzo served as Vice President of Administration and Controller of ValueMark Healthcare Systems, Inc., a
privately held owner-operator of psychiatric hospitals. From 1992 until its sale in 1995, Mr. Pizzo served in various
senior financial positions at Hallmark Healthcare Corporation, a publicly traded hospital management company, most
recently as Treasurer. Mr. Pizzo holds a Bachelor of Science with Special Attainments in Commerce from
Washington and Lee University. The Board believes that Mr. Pizzo should serve as a director of the Company, in light
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of its business and structure, because Mr. Pizzo has numerous years of experience in medical devices, biologics and
healthcare services, including in the role of vice president, finance and chief financial officer.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Independent Directors

Each of our directors, other than C. Daniel Myers, qualifies as an independent director in accordance with the
published listing requirements of the Nasdaq Global Market, or Nasdaq. The Nasdaq independence definition includes
a series of objective tests, such as that the director is not also one of our employees and has not engaged in various
types of business dealings with us. In addition, as further required by the Nasdaq rules, the Board has made a
subjective determination as to each independent director that no relationships exist which, in the opinion of the Board,
would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. In making
these determinations, our directors reviewed and discussed information provided by the directors and us with regard to
each director’s business and personal activities as they may relate to us and our management.

Board Committees

The Board has established an audit committee, a compensation committee and a nominating and corporate governance
committee. The Board and its committees set schedules to meet throughout the year and also can hold special
meetings and act by written consent from time to time as appropriate. The independent directors of the Board also will
hold separate regularly scheduled executive session meetings at least twice a year at which only independent directors
are present. The Board has delegated various responsibilities and authority to its committees as generally described
below. The committees will regularly report on their activities and actions to the full Board. Each current member of
each committee of the Board qualifies as an independent director in accordance with the Nasdaq standards described
above and SEC rules and regulations. Each committee of the Board has a written charter approved by the Board.
Copies of each charter are posted on our website at www.alimerasciences.com under the Investor Relations section.
The inclusion of our website address in this Proxy Statement does not include or incorporate by reference the
information on our website into this Proxy Statement.

The following table provides membership and meeting information for each of the committees of the Board during the
year ended December 31, 2016:

Number of Meetings in

Committee Chairman Members 2016
) . ) Glen Bradley, Ph.D.
Audit Committee Peter J. Pizzo, III Mark 7. Brooks 8
Mark J. Brooks
) ) Brian K. Halak, Garheng Kong, M.D.,
Compensation Committee Ph.D. PhD. 13
James R. Largent
Nominating and Corporate Governance Brian K. Halak, Ph.D.
James R. Largent 1

Committee Peter J. Pizzo, II1

The primary responsibilities of each committee are described below.

Audit Committee

Our audit committee currently consists of Peter J. Pizzo, III, Glen Bradley, Ph.D. and Mark J. Brooks. Mr. Pizzo
serves as the chairman of the audit committee. The Board annually reviews the Nasdaq listing standards definition of
independence for audit committee members and has determined that all current members of our audit committee are
independent (as independence is currently defined in applicable Nasdagq listing standards and Rule 10A-3 promulgated
under the Exchange Act).

Mr. Pizzo qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” as that term is defined in the rules and regulations of the
SEC. The designation of Mr. Pizzo as an “audit committee financial expert” does not impose on him any duties,
obligations or liability that are greater than those that are generally imposed on him as a member of our audit
committee and the Board, and his designation as an “audit committee financial expert” pursuant to this SEC requirement
does not affect the duties, obligations or liability of any other member of our audit committee or the Board.

The audit committee monitors our corporate financial statements and reporting and our external audits, including,
among other things, our internal controls and audit functions, the results and scope of the annual audit and other
services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm and our compliance with legal matters that
have a significant impact on our financial statements. Our audit committee also consults with our management and our
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independent registered public accounting firm prior to the presentation of financial statements to
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stockholders and, as appropriate, initiates inquiries into aspects of our financial affairs. Our audit committee is
responsible for establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding accounting,
internal accounting controls or auditing matters and for the confidential, anonymous submission by our employees of
concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters. Our audit committee monitors compliance with our
Code of Business Conduct policy and oversees our compliance programs. In addition, our audit committee is directly
responsible for the appointment, retention, compensation and oversight of the work of our independent auditors,
including approving services and fee arrangements. Related party transactions will be approved by our audit
committee before we enter into them, in accordance with the applicable rules of Nasdaq.

Both our independent registered public accounting firm and internal financial personnel regularly meet with, and have
unrestricted access to, the audit committee.

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee currently consists of Mark J. Brooks, Brian K. Halak, Ph.D., James R. Largent and
Garheng Kong, M.D., Ph.D. Dr. Halak serves as chairman of the compensation committee. The Board has determined
that Messrs. Brooks and Largent and Drs. Halak and Kong each satisfy the general independence requirements of the
Nasdaq and the SEC rules and regulations for directors. In addition, each member of our compensation committee is a
non-employee director, as defined pursuant to Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act and an outside
director, as defined pursuant to Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

The compensation committee makes recommendations to the Board and reviews and approves our compensation
policies and all forms of compensation to be provided to our directors and executive officers, including, among other
things, annual salaries, bonuses, and equity incentive awards and other incentive compensation arrangements. In
addition, our compensation committee administers our equity incentive and employee stock purchase plans, including
granting stock options or awarding restricted stock units to our directors and executive officers. Our compensation
committee also reviews and approves employment agreements with executive officers and other compensation
policies and matters.

In accordance with Nasdagq listing standards and our amended and restated compensation committee charter, our
compensation committee has the authority and responsibility to retain or obtain the advice of compensation
consultants, legal counsel and other compensation advisors, the authority to fund such advisors, and the responsibility
to consider the independence factors specified under applicable law and any additional factors the compensation
committee deems relevant. The compensation committee has engaged Frederick W. Cook & Co., Inc. (“FW Cook™)
since 2011 to provide advice in connection with our executive compensation programs and used FW Cook’s
recommendations as part of its decision-making process for setting the named executive officers’ 2016 compensation.
In 2017, the compensation committee assessed the independence of FW Cook pursuant to the Nasdaq listing standards
and concluded that the work of FW Cook has not raised any conflict of interest.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Our nominating and corporate governance committee currently consists of Brian K. Halak, Ph.D., James R. Largent
and Peter J. Pizzo, III. Mr. Largent serves as chairman of the nominating and corporate governance committee.

Our nominating and corporate governance committee identifies, evaluates and recommends nominees to the Board
and committees of the Board, conducts searches for appropriate directors and evaluates the performance of the Board
and of individual directors. Our nominating and corporate governance committee believes that candidates for director
should have certain minimum qualifications, including being able to read and understand basic financial statements
and having a general understanding of the Company’s industry. In evaluating potential nominees to the Board, the
nominating and corporate governance committee considers a wide variety of qualifications, attributes and other factors
and recognizes that a diversity of viewpoints and practical experience can enhance the effectiveness of the Board.
Accordingly, as part of its evaluation of each candidate, the nominating and corporate governance committee takes
into account that candidate’s background, experience, qualifications, attributes and skills that may complement,
supplement or duplicate those of other prospective candidates and current directors. Our nominating and corporate
governance committee also considers candidates proposed in writing by stockholders, provided such proposal meets
the eligibility requirements for submitting stockholder proposals under our amended and restated bylaws and is
accompanied by certain required information about the candidate and the stockholder submitting the proposal.
Candidates proposed by stockholders will be evaluated by our nominating and corporate governance committee using
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the same criteria as for all other candidates. Our nominating and corporate governance committee is also responsible
for reviewing developments in corporate governance practices, evaluating the adequacy of our corporate governance
practices and reporting and making recommendations to the Board concerning corporate governance matters. Our
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nominating and corporate governance committee has not adopted a policy regarding the consideration of diversity in
identifying director nominees.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board held twelve meetings in 2016. In 2016, each member of the Board attended 75% or more of the aggregate
of (i) the total number of Board meetings held during the period of such member’s service and (ii) the total number of
meetings of committees on which such member served, during the period of such member’s service.

Director Attendance at Annual Meetings of Stockholders

Directors are encouraged, but not required, to attend our annual stockholder meetings. Glen Bradley, Ph.D., Garheng
Kong, M.D., Ph.D. and C. Daniel Myers attended our last annual meeting.

Separation of CEO and Chairman Roles

The Board separates the positions of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. Separating these positions
allows our Chief Executive Officer to focus on our day-to-day business activities, while allowing the Chairman of the
Board to lead the Board in its fundamental role of providing advice to and independent oversight of our management.
The Board recognizes the time, effort and energy that the Chief Executive Officer is required to devote to his position
in the current business environment, as well as the commitment required to serve as our Chairman of the Board,
particularly as the Board’s oversight responsibilities continue to grow. The Board is led by our Chairman of the Board.
The Chairman of the Board chairs all Board meetings (including executive sessions), acts as liaison between the
independent directors and management, approves Board meeting schedules and oversees the information distributed in
advance of Board meetings, is available to our outside corporate counsel to discuss and, as necessary, respond to
stockholder communications to the Board and calls meetings of the independent directors. We believe that having
different people serving in the roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer is an appropriate and
effective organizational structure for our Company. James R. Largent is Chairman of the Board and chairman of the
nominating and corporate governance committee.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of the members of the compensation committee is or has ever been an officer or employee of the Company. No
executive officer of the Company serves as a member of the Board or compensation committee of any other entity that
has one or more executive officers serving as a member of the Board or our compensation committee.

Risk Oversight

The Board oversees the management of risks inherent in the operation of our business and the implementation of our
business strategies. The Board performs this oversight role by using several different levels of review. In connection
with its reviews of the operations and corporate functions of our Company, the Board addresses the primary risks
associated with those operations and corporate functions. In addition, the Board reviews the risks associated with our
Company’s business strategies periodically throughout the year as part of its consideration of undertaking any such
business strategies.

Each of our Board committees also oversees the management of our Company’s risk that falls within the committee’s
areas of responsibility. In performing this function, each committee has full access to management, as well as the
ability to engage advisors. Our President and Chief Financial Officer, General Counsel and other members of
management report to the audit committee with respect to risk management and our President and Chief Financial
Officer and our General Counsel are responsible for identifying, evaluating and implementing risk management
controls and methodologies to address any identified risks. In connection with its risk management role, our audit
committee meets privately with representatives from our independent registered public accounting firm and our
President and Chief Financial Officer, General Counsel and other members of management. The audit committee
oversees the operation of our risk management program, including the identification of the primary risks associated
with our business and periodic updates to such risks and reports to the Board regarding these activities.
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Employee Compensation Risks

As part of its oversight of our executive compensation program, the compensation committee considers the impact of
our executive compensation program, and the incentives created by the compensation awards that it administers, on
our risk profile. In addition, the compensation committee reviews the compensation policies and procedures for all
employees, including the incentives that they create and factors that may reduce the likelihood of excessive risk
taking, to determine whether they present a significant risk to us. The compensation committee has determined that,
for all employees, our compensation programs are not reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on us.

Code of Business Conduct

The Board has adopted a Code of Business Conduct that relates to ethics and business conduct that applies to all of
our employees, executive officers (including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal
accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions) and directors. The full text of our Code of
Business Conduct is posted on our website at www.alimerasciences.com under the Investor Relations section. We
intend to disclose future amendments to certain provisions of our Code of Business Conduct, or waivers of such
provisions, applicable to our directors and executive officers at the same location on our website identified above and
also in a Current Report on Form 8-K, as required, within four business days following the date of such amendment or
waiver. The inclusion of our website address in this Proxy Statement does not include or incorporate by reference the
information on our website into this Proxy Statement.

Limitation of Liability and Indemnification

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers. The agreements
provide that we will indemnify each of our directors and executive officers against any and all expenses incurred by
that director or executive officer because of his status as one of our directors or executive officers, to the fullest extent
permitted by Delaware law, our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws. In addition, the
agreements provide that, to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, but subject to various exceptions, we will
advance all expenses incurred by our directors in connection with a legal proceeding.

Our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws contain provisions relating to the limitation
of liability and indemnification of directors. The restated certificate of incorporation provides that our directors will
not be personally liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duty as a director,
except for liability:

for any breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders;

for acts or omissions not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

in respect of unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions as provided in

Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law; or

for any transaction from which the director derives any improper personal benefit.

Our restated certificate of incorporation also provides that if Delaware law is amended in the future to authorize
corporate action further eliminating or limiting the personal liability of directors, then the liability of our directors will
be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law. The foregoing provisions of the restated
certificate of incorporation are not intended to limit the liability of directors or officers for any violation of applicable
federal securities laws. As permitted by Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, our restated certificate
of incorporation provides that we may indemnify our directors to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law and the
restated certificate of incorporation provisions relating to indemnity may not be retroactively repealed or modified so
as to adversely affect the protection of our directors.

In addition, as permitted by Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, our amended and restated bylaws
provide that we are authorized to enter into indemnification agreements with our directors and executive officers and
we are authorized to purchase directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, which we currently maintain to cover our
directors and executive officers.
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Communications to the Board

Stockholders interested in communicating with the independent directors regarding their concerns or issues may
address correspondence to a particular director or to the independent directors generally, care of Alimera Sciences,
Inc., 6120 Windward Parkway, Suite 290, Alpharetta, Georgia 30005, Attn: Secretary. The Secretary of the Company
has the authority to disregard any inappropriate communications or to take other appropriate actions with respect to
any inappropriate communications. If deemed an appropriate communication, the Secretary of the Company will
forward it, depending on the subject matter, to the chairman of the Board, chairman of a committee of the Board, the
full Board or a particular director, as appropriate.

Director Compensation

The Board, based in part on the recommendations of FW Cook, our compensation consultant, amended our
non-employee director compensation program effective as of January 1, 2013. The table below describes our
non-employee director compensation program, which consists of annual cash retainers and options to purchase shares
of our common stock:

Term Compensation

Annual Cash Retainer (1) $35,000

Chairman of Board (1) Additional annual retainer of $25,000
Chair of Audit Committee (1) Additional annual retainer of $17,000

Chair of Compensation Committee (1)  Additional annual retainer of $10,000
Chair of Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee (1)

Non-Chair Member of Audit Committee
(D

Non-Chair Member of Compensation
Committee (1)

Non-Chair Member of Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee (1)

Additional annual retainer of $6,000
Additional annual retainer of $7,000
Additional annual retainer of $5,000

Additional annual retainer of $3,000

Option to purchase up to 20,000 shares of our common stock upon election
Initial Option Grant as director prorated based on the number of days remaining in the year of
election (2)
Option to purchase 20,000 shares of our common stock following each
annual meeting of stockholders (2)
(1) All annual cash retainer fees are paid in four quarterly payments.
(2) Option vests and becomes exercisable in equal monthly installments over the following 12 months after grant
provided the director provides continuous service through the applicable vesting date.
All stock option grants to non-employee directors will have an exercise price per share equal to the fair market value
of one share of our common stock on the date of grant and will be subject to the terms of our 2010 Equity Incentive
Plan. Each option granted under our non-employee director compensation program that is not fully vested will become
fully vested upon a change in control of our Company and if the non-employee director’s service terminates due to
death.
We currently have a policy to reimburse our non-employee directors for travel, lodging and other reasonable expenses
incurred in connection with their attendance at Board and committee meetings.

Annual Option Grant
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Director Compensation Table for Year Ended December 31, 2016

The following table sets forth information regarding compensation earned by each of our non-employee directors
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016:

Name(1) Fees Earned or Paid in Cash ($) Option Awards ($)(2) Total ($)
Glen Bradley, Ph.D. 42,000 22,224 64,224
Mark J. Brooks (3) 47,000 22,224 69,224
Brian K. Halak, Ph.D. (3) 48,000 22,224 70,224
Garheng Kong, M.D., Ph.D. 40,000 22,224 62,224
James R. Largent 71,000 22,224 93,224
Peter J. Pizzo, 111 55,000 22,224 77,224
Calvin W. Roberts, M.D. 35,000 22,224 57,224

(1) Mr. Myers was not eligible in 2016 to receive any compensation from us for service as a director pursuant to our

non-employee director compensation plan because Mr. Myers is a Company employee.
(2) The amounts reported in this column represent the aggregate grant date fair value of option awards computed in

accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. See Note 12 of the Notes to the Financial Statements in the Annual Report for a
discussion of our assumptions in determining the ASC 718 values of our option awards.

(3) Fees earned by Mr. Brooks and Dr. Halak were paid to the management companies of the venture capital funds

affiliated with these directors.
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The following table sets forth information regarding outstanding option awards held by each of our non-employee
directors as of December 31, 2016:

Option Awards
Name Number of Number of
Securities Securities

Underlying ~ Underlying 13

Unexercised Unexercised
Options (#) Options (#)
Exercisable Unexercisable
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Operations
Overview

We are a real estate investment trust ( REIT ) that commenced operations in 1986. We invest in
healthcare and human service related facilities including acute care hospitals, behavioral
healthcare facilities, rehabilitation hospitals, sub-acute facilities, surgery centers, childcare
centers and medical office buildings ( MOBs ). As of March 31, 2013, we have fifty-four real
estate investments or commitments located in fifteen states consisting of:

seven hospital facilities consisting of three acute care, one behavioral healthcare, one
rehabilitation and two sub-acute;

forty-three medical office buildings, including thirteen owned by twelve unconsolidated
limited liability companies ( LLCs ), and;

four pre-school and childcare centers.
Forward Looking Statements and Certain Risk Factors

This report contains forward-looking statements that reflect our current estimates, expectations

and projections about our future results, performance, prospects and opportunities.

Forward-looking statements include, among other things, the information concerning our

possible future results of operations, business and growth strategies, financing plans,

expectations that regulatory developments or other matters will not have a material adverse

effect on our business or financial condition, our competitive position and the effects of

competition, the projected growth of the industry in which we operate, and the benefits and

synergies to be obtained from our completed and any future acquisitions, and statements of our

goals and objectives, and other similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical

facts. Words such as may, will, should, could, would, predicts, potential, continue,
anticipates, future, intends, plans, believes, estimates, appears, projects and similar

as well as statements in future tense, identify forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements should not be read as a guarantee of future performance or results,
and will not necessarily be accurate indications of the times at, or by which, such performance
or results will be achieved. Forward-looking information is based on information available at the
time and/or our good faith belief with respect to future events, and is subject to risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual performance or results to differ materially from those
expressed in the statements. Such factors include, among other things, the following:

a substantial portion of our revenues are dependent upon one operator, Universal Health
Services, Inc. ( UHS );

a number of legislative initiatives have recently been passed into law that may result in
major changes in the health care delivery system on a national or state level to the
operators of our facilities, including UHS. No assurances can be given that the
implementation of these new laws will not have a material adverse effect on the
business, financial condition or results of operations of our operators;
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a subsidiary of UHS is our Advisor and our officers are all employees of UHS, which
may create the potential for conflicts of interest;

lost revenues from purchase option exercises and lease expirations and renewals, loan
repayments and other restructuring;

the availability and terms of capital to fund the growth of our business;

the outcome of known and unknown litigation, government investigations, and liabilities
and other claims asserted against us or the operators of our facilities;

failure of the operators of our hospital facilities to comply with governmental regulations
related to the Medicare and Medicaid licensing and certification requirements could have
a material adverse impact on our future revenues and the underlying value of the

property;

the potential unfavorable impact on our business of deterioration in national, regional
and local economic and business conditions, including a continuation or worsening of
unfavorable credit and/or capital market conditions, which may adversely affect, on
acceptable terms, our access to sources of capital which may be required to fund the
future growth of our business and refinance existing debt with near term maturities;

further deterioration in general economic conditions which could result in increases in
the number of people unemployed and/or insured and likely increase the number of
individuals without health insurance; as a result, the operators of our facilities may
experience decreases in patient volumes which could result in decreased occupancy rates
at our medical office buildings;
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a worsening of the economic and employment conditions in the United States could
materially affect the business of our operators, including UHS, which may unfavorably
impact our future bonus rentals (on the UHS hospital facilities) and may potentially have
a negative impact on the future lease renewal terms and the underlying value of the
hospital properties;

real estate market factors, including without limitation, the supply and demand of office
space and market rental rates, changes in interest rates as well as an increase in the
development of medical office condominiums in certain markets;

government regulations, including changes in the reimbursement levels under the
Medicare and Medicaid program resulting from, among other things, the various health
care reform initiatives being implemented;

the issues facing the health care industry that affect the operators of our facilities,
including UHS, such as: changes in, or the ability to comply with, existing laws and
government regulations; unfavorable changes in the levels and terms of reimbursement
by third party payors or government programs, including Medicare (including, but not
limited to, the potential unfavorable impact of future reductions to Medicare
reimbursements resulting from the Budget Control Act of 2011, as discussed below) and
Medicaid (most states have reported significant budget deficits that have resulted in the
reduction of Medicaid funding to the operators of our facilities, including UHS, during
each of the last several years, and many states may effectuate further reductions in the
level of Medicaid funding due to continued projected state budget deficits); demographic
changes; the ability to enter into managed care provider agreements on acceptable terms;
an increase in uninsured and self-pay patients which unfavorably impacts the
collectability of patient accounts; decreasing in-patient admission trends; technological
and pharmaceutical improvements that may increase the cost of providing, or reduce the
demand for, health care, and; the ability to attract and retain qualified medical personnel,
including physicians;

in August, 2011, the Budget Control Act of 2011 (the 2011 Act ) was enacted into law.
The 2011 Act imposed annual spending limits for most federal agencies and programs
aimed at reducing budget deficits by $917 billion between 2012 and 2021, according to a
report released by the Congressional Budget Office. The 2011 Act provides for new
spending on program integrity initiatives intended to reduce fraud and abuse under the
Medicare program. Among its other provisions, the law established a bipartisan
Congressional committee, known as the Joint Select Committee on Deficit Reduction
(the Joint Committee ), which was tasked with making recommendations aimed at
reducing future federal budget deficits by an additional $1.5 trillion over 10 years. The
Joint Committee was unable to reach an agreement by the November 23, 2011 deadline
and, as a result, across-the-board cuts to discretionary, national defense and Medicare
spending were implemented on March 1, 2013 resulting in Medicare payment reductions
of up to 2% per fiscal year with a uniform percentage reduction across all Medicare
programs. We cannot predict whether Congress will attempt to suspend or restructure the
automatic budget cuts or what other deficit reduction initiatives may be proposed by
Congress. We also cannot predict the effect this enactment will have on operators
(including UHS), and, thus, our business;

In March, 2010, the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 and the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act were enacted into law and created significant
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changes to health insurance coverage for U.S. citizens as well as material revisions to the
federal Medicare and state Medicaid programs. The two combined primary goals of
these acts are to provide for increased access to coverage for healthcare and to reduce
healthcare-related expenses. Medicare, Medicaid and other health care industry changes
are scheduled to be implemented at various times during this decade. We cannot predict
the effect, if any, these enactments will have on operators (including UHS) and, thus, our
business;

two LLCs that own properties in California, in which we have various non-controlling
equity interests, could not obtain earthquake insurance at rates which are economically
beneficial in relation to the risks covered;

competition for our operators from other REITs;

the operators of our facilities face competition from other health care providers,
including physician owned facilities and other competing facilities, including certain
facilities operated by UHS but the real property of which is not owned by us. Such
competition is experienced in markets including, but not limited to, McAllen, Texas, the
site of our McAllen Medical Center, a 430-bed acute care hospital, and Riverside
County, California, the site of our Southwest Healthcare System-Inland Valley Campus,
a 130-bed acute care hospital;

changes in, or inadvertent violations of, tax laws and regulations and other factors than
can affect REITs and our status as a REIT;

should we be unable to comply with the strict income distribution requirements
applicable to REITs, utilizing only cash generated by operating activities, we would be
required to generate cash from other sources which could adversely affect our financial
condition;

our majority ownership interests in various LLCs in which we hold non-controlling
equity interests. In addition, pursuant to the operating agreements of most of the LLCs
(consisting of substantially all of the LLCs that own MOBs in Arizona, Reno, Nevada
and California), the third-party member and the Trust, at any time, have the right to
make an offer ( Offering Member ) to the other member(s) ( Non-Offering Member ) in
which it either agrees to: (i) sell the entire ownership interest of the Offering Member to
the Non-Offering Member ( Offer to Sell ) at a price as determined by the Offering
Member ( Transfer Price ), or; (ii) purchase the entire ownership interest of the
Non-Offering Member ( Offer to Purchase ) at the equivalent proportionate Transfer
Price. The Non-Offering Member has 60 days to either: (i) purchase the entire ownership
interest of the Offering Member at the Transfer Price, or; (ii) sell its entire ownership
interest to the Offering Member at the equivalent proportionate Transfer Price. The
closing of the transfer must occur within 60 days of the acceptance by the Non-Offering
Member;
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UHS s 2012 acquisition of Ascend Corporation and its 2010 acquisition of Psychiatric
Solutions, Inc. has required UHS to substantially increase its level of indebtedness,
which could, among other things, adversely affect its ability to raise additional capital to
fund operations, limit its ability to react to changes in the economy or its industry and
could potentially prevent it from meeting its obligations under the agreements related to
its indebtedness. If UHS experiences financial difficulties and, as a result, operations of
its existing facilities suffer, or UHS otherwise fails to make payments to us, our revenues
will significantly decline;

fluctuations in the value of our common stock, and;

other factors referenced herein or in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.
Given these uncertainties, risks and assumptions, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance
on such forward-looking statements. Our actual results and financial condition, including the
operating results of our lessees and the facilities leased to subsidiaries of UHS, could differ
materially from those expressed in, or implied by, the forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statements are made. We assume no
obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements to reflect actual results, changes in
assumptions or changes in other factors affecting forward-looking information, except as may be
required by law. All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our
behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.
We consider our critical accounting policies to be those that require us to make significant
judgments and estimates when we prepare our financial statements, including the following:

Revenue Recognition: Our revenues consist primarily of rentals received from tenants, which
are comprised of minimum rent (base rentals), bonus rentals and reimbursements from tenants
for their pro-rata share of expenses such as common area maintenance costs, real estate taxes
and utilities.

The minimum rent for all hospital facilities is fixed over the initial term or renewal term of the
respective leases. Rental income recorded by our consolidated and unconsolidated medical
office buildings ( MOBs ) relating to leases in excess of one year in length is recognized using the
straight-line method under which contractual rents are recognized evenly over the lease term
regardless of when payments are due. The amount of rental revenue resulting from straight-line
rent adjustments is dependent on many factors including the nature and amount of any rental
concessions granted to new tenants, scheduled rent increases under existing leases, as well as the
acquisitions and sales of properties that have existing in-place leases with terms in excess of one
year. As a result, the straight-line adjustments to rental revenue may vary from period-to-period.
Bonus rents are recognized when earned based upon increases in each facility s net revenue in
excess of stipulated amounts. Bonus rentals are determined and paid each quarter based upon a
computation that compares the respective facility s current quarter s net revenue to the
corresponding quarter in the base year. Tenant reimbursements for operating expenses are
accrued as revenue in the same period the related expenses are incurred.

Real Estate Investments: On the date of acquisition, the purchase price of a property is
allocated to the property s land, buildings and intangible assets based upon our estimates of their
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fair values. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
buildings and capital improvements. The value of intangible assets is amortized over the
remaining lease term.

Asset Impairment: Real estate investments and related intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the property might not be recoverable. A property to be held and used is considered impaired
only if management s estimate of the aggregate future cash flows, less estimated capital
expenditures, to be generated by the property, undiscounted and without interest charges, are
less than the carrying value of the property. This estimate takes into consideration factors such
as expected future operating income, trends and prospects, as well as the effects of demand,
competition, local market conditions and other factors.

The determination of undiscounted cash flows requires significant estimates by management,
including the expected course of action at the balance sheet date that would lead to such cash
flows. Subsequent changes in estimated undiscounted cash flows arising from changes in
anticipated action to be taken with respect to the property could impact the determination of
whether an impairment exists and whether the effects could materially impact our net income.
To the extent estimated undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying value of the property,
the loss will be measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the property over the fair value
of the property.
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Assessment of the recoverability by us of certain lease related costs must be made when we have
reason to believe that a tenant might not be able to perform under the terms of the lease as
originally expected. This requires us to make estimates as to the recoverability of such costs. If
we determine that the intangible assets are not recoverable from future cash flows, the excess of
carrying value of the intangible asset over its estimated fair value is charged to income.

An other than temporary impairment of an investment/advance in an LLC is recognized when
the carrying value of the investment is not considered recoverable based on evaluation of the
severity and duration of the decline in value, including projected declines in cash flow. To the
extent impairment has occurred, the excess carrying value of the asset over its estimated fair
value is charged to income.

Investments in Limited Liability Companies ( LLCs ): Our consolidated financial statements
include the consolidated accounts of our controlled investments and those investments that meet
the criteria of a variable interest entity where we are the primary beneficiary. In accordance with
the FASB s standards and guidance relating to accounting for investments and real estate
ventures, we account for our unconsolidated investments in LLCs which we do not control using
the equity method of accounting. The third-party members in these investments have equal
voting rights with regards to issues such as, but not limited to: (i) divestiture of property;

(ii) annual budget approval, and; (iii) financing commitments. These investments, which
represent 33% to 95% non-controlling ownership interests, are recorded initially at our cost and
subsequently adjusted for our net equity in the net income, cash contributions to, and
distributions from, the investments. Pursuant to certain agreements, allocations of sales proceeds
and profits and losses of some of the LLC investments may be allocated disproportionately as
compared to ownership interests after specified preferred return rate thresholds have been
satisfied.

At March 31, 2013, we have non-controlling equity investments or commitments in thirteen
LLCs which own medical office buildings ( MOBs ). As of March 31, 2013, we accounted for:
(i) twelve of these LLCs on an unconsolidated basis pursuant to the equity method since they are
not variable interest entities, and; (ii) one of these LLCs (Palmdale Medical Properties) on a
consolidated basis, as discussed below, since it is considered to be a variable interest entity
where we are the primary beneficiary by virtue of its master lease with a subsidiary of Universal
Health Services, Inc. ( UHS ), a related party to us.

The majority of these LLCs are joint-ventures between us and a non-related party that manages
and holds minority ownership interests in the entities. Each LLC is generally self-sustained from
a cash flow perspective and generates sufficient cash flow to meet its operating cash flow
requirements and service the third-party debt (if applicable) that is non-recourse to us. Although
there is typically no ongoing financial support required from us to these entities since they are
cash-flow sufficient, we may, from time to time, provide funding for certain purposes such as,
but not limited to, significant capital expenditures and/or leasehold improvements. Although we
are not obligated to do so, if approved by us at our sole discretion, additional cash fundings are
typically advanced as equity or short to intermediate term loans.

Palmdale Medical Properties has a master lease with a subsidiary of UHS. Additionally, UHS of
Delaware, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of UHS, serves as advisor to us under the terms of an
advisory agreement and manages our day-to-day affairs. All of our officers are officers or
employees of UHS (through UHS of Delaware, Inc.). As a result of our related-party
relationship with UHS and the master lease, lease assurance or lease guarantee arrangements
with subsidiaries of UHS, we currently account for this LLC on a consolidated basis since it is a
variable interest entity and we are deemed to be the primary beneficiary. The master lease
arrangement is scheduled to expire in June, 2013.

Federal Income Taxes: No provision has been made for federal income tax purposes since we
qualify as a REIT under Sections 856 to 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and intend
to continue to remain so qualified. As such, we are exempt from federal income taxes and we are
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required to distribute at least 90% of our real estate investment taxable income to our
shareholders.

We are subject to a federal excise tax computed on a calendar year basis. The excise tax equals
4% of the amount by which 85% of our ordinary income plus 95% of any capital gain income
for the calendar year exceeds cash distributions during the calendar year, as defined. No
provision for excise tax has been reflected in the financial statements as no tax is expected to be
due.

Earnings and profits, which determine the taxability of dividends to shareholders, will differ
from net income reported for financial reporting purposes due to the differences for federal tax
purposes in the cost basis of assets and in the estimated useful lives used to compute
depreciation and the recording of provision for investment losses.
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Relationship with Universal Health Services, Inc. ( UHS ) and Related Party Transactions
UHS is our principal tenant and through UHS of Delaware, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of
UHS, serves as our advisor (the Advisor ) under an Advisory Agreement dated December 24,
1986 between the Advisor and us (the Advisory Agreement ). Our officers are all employees of
UHS (through UHS of Delaware, Inc.) and although as of March 31, 2013 we had no salaried
employees, our officers do receive stock-based compensation from time-to-time.

Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, the Advisor is obligated to present an investment program
to us, to use its best efforts to obtain investments suitable for such program (although it is not
obligated to present any particular investment opportunity to us), to provide administrative
services to us and to conduct our day-to-day affairs. All transactions between us and UHS must
be approved by the Trustees who are unaffiliated with UHS (the Independent Trustees ). In
performing its services under the Advisory Agreement, the Advisor may utilize independent
professional services, including accounting, legal, tax and other services, for which the Advisor
is reimbursed directly by us. The Advisory Agreement may be terminated for any reason upon
sixty days written notice by us or the Advisor. The Advisory Agreement expires on

December 31 of each year; however, it is renewable by us, subject to a determination by the
Independent Trustees that the Advisor s performance has been satisfactory. The Advisor is
entitled to certain advisory fees for its services. In December of 2012, based upon a review of
our advisory fee and other general and administrative expenses, as compared to an industry peer
group, the fee was increased, effective January 1, 2013, to 0.70% (from 0.65%) of our average
invested real estate assets, as derived from our consolidated balance sheet. The Advisory
Agreement was renewed for 2013. See Relationship with UHS and Related Party Transactions
in Note 2 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information on the
Advisory Agreement and related fees.

The combined revenues generated from the leases on the UHS hospital facilities comprised
approximately 30% and 31% of our consolidated revenues for the three months ended March 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. Including 100% of the revenues generated at the unconsolidated
LLCs in which we have various non-controlling equity interests ranging from 33% to 95%, the
leases on the UHS hospital facilities accounted for approximately 22% of the combined
consolidated and unconsolidated revenue for each of the three month periods ended March 31,
2013 and 2012. In addition, eleven MOBs, including those owned by LLCs in which we hold
either 100% of the ownership interest or various non-controlling, majority ownership interests,
include or will include tenants which are subsidiaries of UHS. The leases to the hospital
facilities of UHS are guaranteed by UHS and cross-defaulted with one another. For additional
disclosure related to our relationship with UHS, please refer to Note 2 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements, Relationship with Universal Health Services, Inc. ( UHS ) and
Related Party Transactions.

Results of Operations

For the three months ended March 31, 2013, net income was $3.4 million as compared to $9.5
million during the comparable prior year quarter. The decrease in net income of $6.1 million
during the first quarter of 2013, as compared to the comparable prior year quarter, was
attributable to:

an unfavorable change of 7.4 million in gain on divestiture of property owned by an

unconsolidated LLC in which we formerly held a noncontrolling majority ownership
interest (see Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements for additional disclosure
related to this divestiture);

a favorable change of $438,000 from a decrease in transaction costs;
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a favorable change of $406,000 resulting from a decrease in depreciation and
amortization expense, resulting primarily from a decrease in amortization expense
recorded on intangible assets;

a favorable change of $128,000 in interest expense, as discussed below, and;

other combined net favorable changes of approximately $316,000 resulting primarily

from increased income generated at a number of our properties.
Interest expense, net, decreased $128,000 during the three-month period of 2013, as compared to
the same period in 2012, due primarily to: (i) an increase in our average outstanding borrowings,
offset by a decrease in the average effective interest rate pursuant to the terms of our $150
million revolving credit agreement that commenced in July, 2011, and; (ii) a decrease in
mortgage interest expense at certain of our properties. The increased borrowings during the first
quarter of 2013, as compared to the first quarter of 2012, were used primarily to fund the
purchase of an MOB during the fourth quarter of 2012.

During the three-month period ended March 31, 2013, as compared to the comparable quarter of
2012, total revenue increased by $534,000 resulting primarily from the revenues generated
during the first quarter of 2013 at two MOBs acquired during the first and fourth quarters of
2012.

Included in our other operating expenses are expenses related to the consolidated medical office
buildings, which totaled $3.3 million and $3.1 million for the three-month periods ended

March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The increase in other operating expenses during the
three-month period ended March 31, 2013, as compared to the same quarter of 2012, resulted
primarily from the operating expenses incurred during the first quarter of 2013 at the two MOBs
acquired during the first and fourth quarters of 2012. A portion of

18

41



Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: ALIMERA SCIENCES INC - Form DEFR14A

Table of Conten

the expenses associated with our consolidated medical office buildings is passed on directly to
the tenants. Tenant reimbursements for operating expenses are accrued as revenue in the same
period the related expenses are incurred and are included as tenant reimbursement revenue in
our condensed consolidated statements of income.

Funds from operations ( FFO ) is a widely recognized measure of performance for Real Estate
Investment Trusts ( REITs ). We believe that FFO and FFO per diluted share, and adjusted funds
from operations (  AFFO ) and AFFO per diluted share, which are non-GAAP financial measures
( GAAP is Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America), are
helpful to our investors as measures of our operating performance. We compute FFO, as

reflected below, in accordance with standards established by the National Association of Real
Estate Investment Trusts ( NAREIT ), which may not be comparable to FFO reported by other
REITs that do not compute FFO in accordance with the NAREIT definition, or that interpret the
NAREIT definition differently than we interpret the definition. AFFO was also computed for the
three month periods ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, as reflected below, since we believe it is
helpful to our investors since it adjusts for the effect of the transaction costs related to
acquisitions. FFO/AFFO do not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance
with GAAP and should not be considered to be an alternative to net income determined in
accordance with GAAP. In addition, FFO/AFFO should not be used as: (i) an indication of our
financial performance determined in accordance with GAAP; (ii) an alternative to cash flow

from operating activities determined in accordance with GAAP; (iii) a measure of our liquidity,
or; (iv) an indicator of funds available for our cash needs, including our ability to make cash
distributions to shareholders. A reconciliation of our reported net income to FFO/AFFO is
included below.

Below is a reconciliation of our reported net income to FFO and AFFO for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2013 2012

Net income $3,427 $ 9,514
Depreciation and amortization expense on
consolidated investments 4,757 5,182
Depreciation and amortization expense on
unconsolidated affiliates 753 858
Gain on divestiture of property owned by an
unconsolidated LLC, net (7,375)
Funds From Operations 8,937 8,179
Transaction costs 82 520
Adjusted Funds From Operations $9,019 $ 8,699

Our FFO increased $758,000 to $8.9 million during the first quarter of 2013 as compared to $8.2
million during the first quarter of 2012. The increase was primarily due to: (i) a favorable
change of $1.3 million resulting from an increase in net income, exclusive of the $7.4 million
gain on divestiture of property owned by an unconsolidated LLC recorded during the first
quarter of 2012, offset by; (ii) an unfavorable change of $530,000 resulting from a decrease in
the add-back of depreciation and amortization expense (including consolidated investments and
unconsolidated affiliates) resulting primarily from a decrease in amortization expense recorded
on intangible assets.

Our AFFO increased $320,000 to $9.0 million during the first quarter of 2013 as compared to
$8.7 million during the comparable quarter of 2012. The increase in AFFO during the first
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quarter of 2013, as compared to the comparable quarter of 2012, was primarily attributable to:
(i) the above-mentioned $758,000 increase in FFO, less; (ii) the unfavorable change of $438,000
resulting from a decrease in the add-back of the transaction costs incurred during each period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $7.6 million and $7.0 million during the
three-month periods ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The $615,000 net increase
was attributable to:

a favorable change of $931,000 due to an increase in net income plus/minus the
adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
(depreciation and amortization, amortization on debt premium, restricted/stock-based
compensation and gain on divestiture of property owned by an unconsolidated LLC), as
discussed above in Results of Operations;

a favorable change of $258,000 in rent receivable, primarily resulting from a decrease in
receivables at various MOBs;
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an unfavorable change of $479,000 in tenant reserves, escrows, deposits and prepaid
rents resulting primarily from decreased prepaid rents collected from various MOBs,
and;

other net unfavorable change of $95,000.
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $706,000 during the three months ended March 31,
2013 as compared to $7.1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2012.

During the three-month period ended March 31, 2013, we funded: (i) $542,000 in equity
investments in various unconsolidated LLCs; (ii) $519,000 in advances in the form of member
loans to unconsolidated LLCs, and; (iii) $434,000 in capital additions. In addition, during the
three-month period ended March 31, 2013, we received: (i) $763,000 of cash distributions in
excess of income from our unconsolidated LLCs, and; (ii) $26,000 in repayments of advances
previously made to unconsolidated LLCs.

During the three-month period ended March 31, 2012, we funded: (i) an $8.0 million advance in
the form of a member loan to an unconsolidated LLC to retire its third-party debt (this entity
divested its property in October, 2012 and the member loan was repaid to us); (ii) $7.3 million
(net of certain acquired liabilities, third-party debt and prepaid deposit) to acquire the real estate
assets of the PeaceHealth Medical Clinic, as discussed above; (iii) $931,000 for additions to real
estate investments primarily for tenant improvements at various MOBSs; (iv) $543,000 for
settlement of assumed liabilities related to newly acquired MOBs, and; (v) $284,000 in equity
investments in various unconsolidated LLCs. In addition, during the three-month period ended
March 31, 2012, we received: (i) $436,000 in repayments of advances previously made to
unconsolidated LLCs; (ii) $1.3 million of cash distributions in excess of income from our
unconsolidated LLCs; (iii) $100,000 of refunded real estate deposits, and; (iv) $8.1 million, net,
of cash in connection with our share of the proceeds received from the divestiture of an MOB
owned by an unconsolidated LLC, as discussed above.

Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $6.6 million during the three months ended March 31,
2013 as compared to $7.7 million of net cash provided by financing activities during the three
months ended March 31, 2012.

During the three-month period ended March 31, 2013, we: (i) received $2.4 million of additional
net borrowings on our revolving line of credit; (ii) received $11.2 million of proceeds related to
a new mortgage note payable (refinance) that is non-recourse to us, and; (iii) generated $52,000
of net cash from the issuance of shares of beneficial interest. Additionally, during the three
months ended March 31, 2013, we paid: (i) $12.3 million on mortgage and other notes payable
that are non-recourse to us (including the pay-off of a mortgage note payable that was refinanced
during the first quarter of 2013, resulting in $11.2 million of proceeds to us); (i) $95,000 of
financing costs on mortgage and other notes payable, and; (iii) $7.9 million of dividends.

During the three-month period ended March 31, 2012, we: (i) received $3.1 million of additional
net borrowings on our revolving line of credit, and; (ii) generated $118,000 of net cash from the
issuance of shares of beneficial interest. Additionally, during the three months ended March 31,
2012, we paid: (i) $3.2 million on mortgage and other notes payable that are non-recourse to us,
and; (ii) $7.7 million of dividends.

We filed a Registration Statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission which became
effective in November 2012, under which we can offer up to an aggregate sales price of $50
million of our securities pursuant to supplemental prospectuses which we may file from time to
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time. No offering will be made except pursuant to such supplemental prospectuses.

Additional cash flow and dividends paid information for the three-month periods ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012:

As indicated on our consolidated statement of cash flows, we generated net cash provided by
operating activities of $7.6 million and $7.0 million during the three-month periods ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. As also indicated on our statement of cash flows,
noncash expenses such as depreciation and amortization expense, restricted/stock-based
compensation expense as well as the gain recorded during the first three months of 2012, are the
primary differences between our net income and net cash provided by operating activities during
each period. In addition, as reflected in the cash flows from investing activities section, we
received $763,000 and $1.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, of cash distributions in excess of income from various unconsolidated LLCs which
represents our share of the net cash flow distributions from these entities. These cash
distributions in excess of income represent operating cash flows net of capital expenditures and
debt repayments made by the LLCs.

We generated $8.4 million of net cash during each of the three months ended March 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively, related to the operating activities of our properties recorded on a
consolidated and an unconsolidated basis. We paid dividends of $7.9 million and $7.7 million
during the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. During the first three
months of 2013, the cash generated from the operating activities of our properties ($8.4 million)
exceeded the dividends paid ($7.9 million) by approximately $518,000. During the first three
months of 2012, the $8.4 million of net cash generated related to operating activities was
approximately $628,000 more than the $7.7 million of dividends paid during the prior year three
month period.
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As indicated in the cash flows from investing activities and cash flows from financing activities
sections of the statements of cash flows, there were various other sources and uses of cash
during the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012. Therefore, the funding source for our
dividend payments is not wholly dependent on the operating cash flow generated by our
properties in any given period. Rather, our dividends, as well as our capital reinvestments into
our existing properties, acquisitions of real property and other investments are funded based
upon the aggregate net cash inflows or outflows from all sources and uses of cash from the
properties we own either in whole or through LLCs, as outlined above.

In determining and monitoring our dividend level on a quarterly basis, our management and
Board of Trustees consider many factors in determining the amount of dividends to be paid each
period. These considerations primarily include: (i) the minimum required amount of dividends to
be paid in order to maintain our REIT status; (ii) the current and projected operating results of
our properties, including those owned in LLCs, and; (iii) our future capital commitments and
debt repayments, including those of our LLCs. Based upon the information discussed above, as
well as consideration of projections and forecasts of our future operating cash flows,
management and the Board of Trustees have determined that our operating cash flows have been
sufficient to fund our dividend payments. Future dividend levels will be determined based upon
the factors outlined above with consideration given to our projected future results of operations.

Included in the various sources of cash were: (i) funds generated from the repayments of
advances made from us to LLCs ($26,000 and $436,000 for the three months ended March 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively); (ii) net borrowings on our revolving credit agreement ($2.4
million and $3.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively);
(iii) proceeds from mortgage notes payable ($11.2 million for the three months ended March 31,
2013), and; (iv) net cash generated in connection with the issuance of shares of beneficial
interest ($52,000 and $118,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively). In addition, during the first three months of 2012, we generated $8.1 million from
the divestiture of an MOB owned by an unconsolidated LLC.

In addition to the dividends paid, the following were also included in the various uses of cash:
(i) investments in LLCs ($542,000 and $284,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively); (ii) advances made to LLCs ($519,000 and $8.0 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively); (iii) net real estate additions ($434,000
and $931,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively);

(iv) repayments of mortgage and other notes payable ($12.3 million and $3.2 million for the
three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively); (v) financing costs paid on
mortgage and other notes payable ($95,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2013), and;
(vi) acquisitions of medical office buildings ($7.3 million for the three months ended March 31,
2012). Additionally, during the first three months of 2012, we had additional uses of cash
consisting of a $543,000 payment of assumed liabilities on acquired properties.

We expect to finance all capital expenditures and acquisitions and pay dividends utilizing
internally generated and additional funds. Additional funds may be obtained through:

(i) borrowings under our existing $150 million revolving credit facility agreement (which has
$53.4 million of available borrowing capacity, net of outstanding borrowings and letters of
credit, as of March 31, 2013); (ii) borrowings under or refinancing of existing third-party debt
pursuant to mortgage and construction loan agreements entered into by our LLCs, and/or;

(iii) the issuance of other long-term debt.

We believe that our operating cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, available borrowing
capacity under our revolving credit facility and access to the capital markets provide us with
sufficient capital resources to fund our operating, investing and financing requirements for the
next twelve months, including providing sufficient capital to allow us to make distributions
necessary to enable us to continue to qualify as a REIT under Sections 856 to 860 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986. In the event we need to access the capital markets or other sources of
financing, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain financing on acceptable terms
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or within an acceptable time. Our inability to obtain financing on terms acceptable to us could
have a material unfavorable impact on our results of operations, financial condition and
liquidity.

Credit facilities and mortgage debt

In July, 2011, we entered into a $150 million revolving credit agreement (  Credit Agreement )
which is scheduled to expire on July 24, 2015. The Credit Agreement includes a $50 million sub
limit for letters of credit and a $20 million sub limit for swingline/short-term loans. The Credit
Agreement also provides an option to increase the total facility borrowing capacity by an
additional $50 million, subject to lender agreement. Borrowings made pursuant to the Credit
Agreement will bear interest, at our option, at one, two, three, or six month LIBOR plus an
applicable margin ranging from 1.75% to 2.50% or at the Base Rate plus an applicable margin
ranging from 0.75% to 1.50%. The Credit Agreement defines Base Rate as the greatest of:

(a) the administrative agent s prime rate, (b) the federal funds effective rate plus 1/2 of 1%, and;
(c) one month LIBOR plus 1%. A fee of 0.30% to 0.50% will be charged on the unused portion
of the commitment. The margins over LIBOR, Base Rate and the commitment fee are based
upon our ratio of debt to total capital. At March 31, 2013, the applicable margin over the LIBOR
rate was 1.75%, the margin over the Base Rate was 0.75%, and the commitment fee was 0.30%.
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At March 31, 2013, we had $84.2 million of outstanding borrowings and $12.4 million of letters
of credit outstanding against our revolving credit agreement. We had $53.4 million of available
borrowing capacity, net of the outstanding borrowings and letters of credit outstanding as of
March 31, 2013. There are no compensating balance requirements.

Covenants relating to the Agreement require the maintenance of a minimum tangible net worth
and specified financial ratios, limit our ability to incur additional debt, limit the aggregate
amount of mortgage receivables and limit our ability to increase dividends in excess of 95% of
cash available for distribution, unless additional distributions are required to comply with the
applicable section of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and related regulations governing real
estate investment trusts. We are in compliance with all of the covenants at March 31, 2013. We
also believe that we would remain in compliance if the full amount of our commitment was
borrowed.

The following table includes a summary of the required compliance ratios, giving effect to the
new covenants contained in the Credit Agreement (dollar amounts in thousands):

March 31,
Covenant 2013
Tangible net worth $ 125,000 $ 148,723
Debt to total capital <55% 32.7%
Debt service coverage ratio > 5.00x 21.10x
Debt to cash flow ratio <3.50x 1.96x

We have thirteen mortgages, all of which are non-recourse to us, included on our consolidated
balance sheet as of March 31, 2013, with a combined outstanding balance of $113.8 million
(excluding net debt premium, resulting from fair value recognition of third-party debt related to
majority-owned LLCs in which we purchased the minority ownership interests, of $1.2 million
at March 31, 2013). The following table summarizes our outstanding mortgages at March 31,
2013 (amounts in thousands):

Outstanding

Balance Interest Maturity
Facility Name (in thousands)(a) Rate Date
Palmdale Medical Plaza floating rate
mortgage loan(b) $ 6,253 4.45% 2013
Summerlin Hospital Medical Office
Building I fixed rate mortgage loan 9,343 6.55% 2014
Spring Valley Medical Office Building
fixed rate mortgage loan 5,267 5.50% 2015
Summerlin Hospital Medical Office
Building III floating rate mortgage loan 11,576 3.45% 2016
Peace Health fixed rate mortgage loan 21,984 5.64% 2017
Auburn Medical II floating rate mortgage
loan 7,567 2.95% 2017
Medical Center of Western Connecticut
fixed rate mortgage loan 4,979 6.00% 2017
Summerlin Hospital Medical Office
Building II fixed rate mortgage loan 12,231 5.50% 2017
Centennial Hills Medical Office Building
floating rate mortgage loan 11,150 3.45% 2018
Kindred Hospital-Corpus Christi fixed rate
mortgage loan 3,040 6.50% 2019

6,885 4.54% 2022
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700 Shadow Lane and Goldring MOBs
fixed rate mortgage loan
BRB Medical Office Building fixed rate

mortgage loan 6,961 4.27% 2022
Tuscan Professional Building fixed rate

mortgage loan 6,548 5.56% 2025
Total $ 113,784

(a) Amortized principal payments are made on a monthly basis.

(b) We believe the terms of this loan are within current market underwriting criteria. We expect
to refinance this loan on or before the July 31, 2013 maturity date for a three to ten year term
at the then current market interest rates. In the unexpected event that we are unable to
refinance this loan on reasonable terms, we will explore other financing alternatives,
including, among other things, potentially repaying the mortgage loan utilizing funds
borrowed under our revolving credit facility.
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The mortgages are secured by the real property of the buildings as well as property leases and
rents. The mortgages have a combined fair value of approximately $116.0 million as of
March 31, 2013. Changes in market rates on our fixed rate debt impacts the fair value of debt,
but it has no impact on interest incurred or cash flow.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of March 31, 2013, we are party to certain off balance sheet arrangements consisting of
standby letters of credit and equity and debt financing commitments. Our outstanding letters of
credit at March 31, 2013 totaled $12.4 million consisting of: (i) $2.6 million related to Grayson
Properties; (ii) $2.5 million related to Centennial Hills Medical Properties; (iii) $2.4 million
related to FTX MOB Phase II, LP; (iv) $1.8 million related to Banburry Medical Properties;

(v) $1.7 million related to Palmdale Medical Properties; (vi) $908,000 related to Sierra Medical
Properties, and; (vii) $478,000 related to Arlington Medical Properties.

Acquisition and Divestiture Activity

Please see Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for completed transactions.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

There have been no material changes in the quantitative and qualitative disclosures during the
first three months of 2013. Reference is made to Item 7A in our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

As of March 31, 2013, under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including the Trust s Chief Executive Officer ( CEO ) and Chief Financial Officer ( CFO ), we
performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as

defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the 1934 Act ). Based on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that material information is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported by management on a timely basis in order to comply with
our disclosure obligations under the 1934 Act and the SEC rules thereunder.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting or in other factors
during the first quarter of 2013 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART I1. OTHER INFORMATION

UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME TRUST

Item 1A.Risk Factors

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 includes a listing of
risk factors to be considered by investors in our securities. There have been no material changes
in our risk factors from those set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Item 6. Exhibits

(a.) Exhibits:

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule
13a-14(a)/15(d)-14(a) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule
13a-14(a)/15(d)-14(a) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended.

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,

as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS** XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB ** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

** XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed or a
part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the
Securities Act of 1933, is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: May 7, 2013

UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME

TRUST
(Registrant)

/s/ Alan B. Miller
Alan B. Miller,
Chairman of the Board,

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Charles F. Boyle
Charles F. Boyle,

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit

No.
31.1

31.2

32.1

322

101.INS**

101.SCH**
101.CAL**
101.DEF**
101.LAB**
101.PRE**

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule
13a-14(a)/15(d)-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule
13a-14(a)/15(d)-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

** XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed or a
part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the
Securities Act of 1933, is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.
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